SATHIYA

& ASSOCIATES LLP CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (“IND AS™), of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, its profit, total comprehensive income , its
cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income , cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the
Act, read with relevant rules issued there under.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatem ent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation

of the financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose
of preparation of these financial statements.

. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31%
March, 2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31° March, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:
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iii.

v.

vi.

There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position
of the Company.

. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company in accordance to the provision of the Act,
and rules made there under.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in note 41, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds ) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(entities), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in note 41, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(entities), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise ,
that the Company shall , whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us believe that representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above may
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year hence the
provisions of Section 123 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
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3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

The Company has not paid managerial remuneration hence, the provisions of section 197
with respect to managerial remuneration are not applicable to the Company.

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 101046W / W100063
/gg\,ma.
Vinod K. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 032348

Place: Mumbai
Date : 9" April, 2024
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Re: Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

i.  In respect of Company’s Property Plant and Equipment:

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
P P
quantitative (details and situation of property, plant, equipment fixed assets).

(B)In respect of Intangible assets:
The Company is maintaining proper records showin g full particulars.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
all the assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year at regular
intervals which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanation given to us and
records examined by us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not own any immovable properties hence issue with respect to title
deeds is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of it’s Property Plant Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to information and explanation provided to us by the management and the
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii. In respect of its Inventories:

a. The Company does not hold inventory at any time during the year, hence the issue with respect
to physical verification and discrepancies does not arises.

b. During any point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of 5 crore rupees, in aggregate , from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets hence verification of relevant statements is not applicable.

ili. According to the information given to us, the Company has not made investments in, provided

any guarantee or security but granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, the details of which are as under-

Page 7 of 14




(a) During the year the Company has provided loans the details of which are as follows-

(A) the aggregate amount given during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as under.

Aggregate amount of loan given during the year is Rs. Nil.
The balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs. Nil.

(B) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other
than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as under;

Aggregate amount of loan given during the year is Rs.3650 lakhs
The balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs. Nil.

(b) The terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans are
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans for which the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated and the repayments or receipts
are irregular;

(d) There was no amount overdue for more than ninety days.

(€) During the year no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due
during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue
of existing loans given to the same parties,

(f) The Company has granted loans repayable on demand and the same has been repaid during
the year , the details of which are as under.

Sr. No. All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate amount of

loans/ advances in

nature of loans
i)Repayable on
demand (A) Rs. 3650 lakhs Nil Rs. 3650 lakhs
ii)Agreement  does
not specify any terms

or period of Nil Nil Nil
repayment (B)
Total (A+B) Rs. 3650 lakhs Nil Rs. 3650 lakhs

Percentage of loans/
advances in nature of

loans to the total 100% 0% 100%
loans
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iv.

vi.

Vil.

The Company has given loans covered under provisions of section 186 of the Act and relevant
provisions have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
during the year, within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act or directives issued by
Reserve Bank of India or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there
under and therefore, clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. No order has
been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any court or any other tribunal against the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examined by us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act in respect of the Company.

According to the information and based on the examination of the explanations given to us,

a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues includi ng Provident
fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Profession Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such statutory dues were

in arrears as at 31* March, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

b) There are no dues referred to in sub-clause (a), which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given by the management and records

ix.

examined by us there are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account and

which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of

loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to banks or financial institutions
during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
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XI.

Xii.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not taken any term loans during the year and hence clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or
Jjoint venture as defined under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, the clause 3(x)(a)of the
aforesaid Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore
clause 3(x)(b) of the aforesaid order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, we have neither noticed or reported during the year any instances of fraud by
the Company or any fraud on the Company .

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the

auditors in Form ADT -4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us no whistle blower complaints have been received during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore clause 3(xii)(a)(b)(c) of the aforesaid Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
related party transactions the Company has complied with Section 177 and 188 of the Act. The

details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (a) According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, the internal audit is not applicable to the Company however there is a proper
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of business.

xv. According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him, under Section192 of the Act. Accordingly, clause (xv) of the
Order is not applicable.

xvi. (a)The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934.

(b)The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934; therefore the said sub-clause is not applicable.

(¢)The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India; therefore the sub-clause(c) and (d) is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year, hence clause 3 (xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

xviii. There is no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, hence clause 3 (xviii) of the

(Wi

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
the director’s report forming part of the annual report of the company; and as per our
knowledge of the Board of Directors’ and management plans, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and that the Company is capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.




xX. According to the information and explanations given by the management and records
examined by us, the Company is not required to spend amount under CSR Scheme under
section 135 of the Companies Act. Hence sub-clause (a)and (b) is not applicable.

xxi. As the Company is not required to consolidate the accounts of any other company, this clause
is not applicable.

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 101046 W/W 100063

(o — T

Yinod K. Shah (<
Partner i
Membership No.: 032348 AN

s D
mﬁﬁ‘ﬁ?&
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date for the year ended as on 315 March,2023)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Com panies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March
31,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
OF erTor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Branch has, in all material respects, internal financial controls over financial reporting that
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal control over
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101046 W/W 100063

A

Vinod K. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 032348
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FFREEDOM INTERMEDIARY INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : UT4999MH2013PTC245870
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Asat Asat
Fartninsy NoteNo. | nareh 31,2024 March 31, 2023
I ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 4198 50,04
(b) Right-of-use Asset 3 7.65 2293
(¢) Other Intangible assets 4 489.16 612.22
(d) Financial Assets
- Other Financial Assets 10(1) 3.37 3.15
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 127.52 152.72
(f) Other non-current assets 6 20.85 16.76
Total Non-current assets 690.53 857.81
2 Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(1) Trade receivables 7 4,29 9.54
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents 8 376.61 36.67
(111) Loans ) = =
(1v) Investments 10(11) 942.61 1,001.29
(b) Other current assets 11 9.56 12.02
Total Current Assets 1,333.07 1,059.52
Total Assets 2,023.60 1,917.33
u EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 12 8293 £82.93
(b) Other Equity 13 1,568.32 1,4%6.25
Tatal Equity 1,651.25 1,579.18
2 LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 14{1) 12.73 17.00
(ii) Lease Liability 15(i) a 1551
{b) Provisions 16(i) 22,09 19.43
Total Non-Current Liabilities 34.82 51.94
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14(ii) 427 395
(i1) Lease Liabality 15(1) 826 826
(iii) Trade payables 17
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises = 5
(iv) Other financial liabilities 18 18.85 12.94
(b) Other current liabilities 19 300.83 25583
(e) Provisions 16(ii) 532 523
Total Current Lisbilities 337.53 286.21
Total Equity And Liabilities 2,023.60 1,917.33
Corporate Information and summary of Material Accounting Policies & Notes
Forming Part of the Financial Statement 1-42

As per our attached report of even date

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101046W/AW10006%

S

Vinod K. Shah

Partner

Membership no: 032348
Muimbai

Date: April, 09, 2024

Bishnupagda Sahu

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Djrector & CEO

9

St

Director
DIN:01315143
Mumbai




FFREEDOM INTERMEDIARY INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U74999MH2013PTC245870

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended | For the year ended March
P; 9
b e Note No- | Mareh 31, 2024 31,2023
I Revenue From Operations 20 562.54 486.15
I Other Income 21 11236 00.32
III Total Income (I+IT) 674.90 576.47
IV Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 22 352.56 28795
Finance costs 23 278 3.57
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3&4 148.31 146.85
Other expenses 24 72.45 80.56
Total expenses (IV) 576.10 518.92
V' Profit/(Loss) before tax (I1I-IV) 98.80 57.55
VI Tax expense:
Current Tax y -
Deferred tax 25 2551 124.50
Tax Adjustment for Prior Period 0.30 E
Total Tax Expenses 25.81 124.50
VII Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) 72.99 (66.95)
WVIII Other Comprehensive Income
(A) (i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss - i
(B) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
- Remeasurements of the defined employee benefit plans (1.22) (11.45)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss 0.30 2.88
Total Other comprehensive income (0.92) (8.57)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII) 72.07 (75.52)
VIII Earning Per Equity Share of Rs.10 each 29
Basic 8.80 (8.07)
Diluted 8.80 (8.07)
Corporate Information and summary of Material Accounting Policies
& Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statement

As per our attached report of even date

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101046W/W100063

Vinod K. Shak—
Partner

Membership no: 032348
Mumbai

Date: April, 09, 2024

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Ra%l,{uma r Bhutara

Director
DIN:01315143




|Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.
CIN : U74999MH2013PTC245870
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)

: For the year ended March| For the year ended March
Particulars 31, 2024 31,2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 98.80 57.55
Add / (Less) :
Depreciation & amortisation 148.31 146.85
Loss on written off of fixed assets - 218
Net Fair Value (Gain)/Loss on Financial instruments (0.93) (0.94)
Interest Income (109.51) (50.28)
Interest Expenses (including Ind As impact of Rs. 1.29 lakhs & P.Y. Rs. 2.53 Lakhs) 278 336
Provision for Gratuity 273 3.06
Provision for Leave Encask 0.02 (0.97)
Operating profit before working capital changes 142.20 120.81
Adjustment for :
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Financial Assets 59.39 (1,000.35)
(Increase)/decrease in Other current assets 2.46 14.09
(Increase)/decrease in Trade receivables 525 3.09
Increase/(decrease) in Trade payables = o
Increase/(decrease) in Other Financial liabilities 591 (20.52)
Increase/(decrease) in Other current liabilities 43.78 29.90
116,79 (973.79)
Cash (used in)/ generated from operations 158.99 (852.98)
Add/ ( Less) :
Income Tax (Paid)/ Refund (4.39) 242
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities 284.60 (850.56)
B. Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.92) (28.23)
Sales of Fixed assets - 0.02
Security Deposit Given (0.01) (88.19)
Loan given (3,650.00) (3,978.00)
Loan received back 3,650.00 3,978.00
Interest Income 109.51 178.45
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities 107.58 62.05
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Interest Paid (1.49) (0.83)
Loan Taken - 20.94
Repayment of Loan (3.95) -
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (16.80) -
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities {22.24) 20.11
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 339.94 (768.40)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 36.67 805.07
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of Year 376.61 36.67
Details of cash and cash equivalent at the end of Year
- Cash in hand 027 0.08
- Balance in current accounts 376,34 36,59
Total 376.61 36.67

Cash flow is prepared under indirect method as specified under IND AS 7- Statements of Cash f

jow,

As per our attached report of even date

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101046W/W 100063

L
Vinod K. Sitar—

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

ol

Partner

Membership no: 032348
Mumbai

Date: April, 09, 2024

Bishnupyda Sahu Rajes Kumar Bhutara
Whole Tinte Director & CEO Director

DIN:06788139 DIN:01315143

Mumbai Mumbai




Ffreedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.
CIN : UT4999MH2013PTC245870

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A, Equity Share Capital

(Rs. in Lakhs)
No. of Shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As At 1 April 2022 829252 8293
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 8,29,252 8293
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
As At 31 March 2023 829,252 8293
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
|Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 829,252 8293
Changes in equity share capital during the period - -
As At March 31, 2024 8,29,252 82.93
B. Other Equity
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Securities Premium Retained Earnings O Camprintve Total
Income
Balance as at April 1, 2022 2,442.08 (886.42) 16.11 1,571.78
Profit/(Loss) for the Year - (66.95) - (66.95)
Addition during the year - - - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) - - (8.57) (8.57)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,442.08 (953.37) 7.54 1,496.25
Balance as at April 1, 2023 2,442.08 (953.37) 7.54 1,496.25
Profit/(Loss) for the period - 72.99 - 72.99
Addition during the period - - - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) - - (0.92) (0.92)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,442.08 (880.38) 6.62 1,568.32

As per our attached report of even date

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
FRN 101046W/W100063

K

Vinod K. St
Partner

Membership no: 032348
Mumbai

Date: April, 09, 2024

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Bishnupyda Sahu
Whole Titge Director & CEO

(o5

Rajesh Kumar Bhutara
Director

DIN:01315143

Mumbai




[Fircedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvi. Ltd.
CIN ; UT4999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ffreedom intermediary infrastructure is a private limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is engaged in the busi of collecti ing
information in various manner using manual, electronic, mobile or any other mediums or devices from clients, intermediaries, corporate and people in general, to create analytics, statistics, reports, collat
data and information and to create, design, invent, prepare, own, develop market, distribute, franchise out, rent, outsource, operate as service o(‘ ftware systems, soft solution, hard and to deal
with comp data p hines or any other equipment and materials of every kind and description useful in ion with coll Juations & storage of data/information, dm mpul
tool, and output repons and pmv:de guidelines and actionable, engage with clients, intermediaries and to deliver as per their requirements in terms of building infrastructure on the basis of i
technology (IT) or non IT and make it available worldwide.

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(a) Statement of Compliance

These financial are prepared in ! with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian A ng Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the
C ies (Indian A ing Standards) (A d ) Rules, 2016, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™).

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on April 09, 2024

(b) Basis Of Measurement

These Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting peniod, as explamed in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the ideration given in exch for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asaul or paid to transfer a h.nhahty in an crd.erly transaction | market particip at the date, regardless of whether that price 15
directly observable or estimated using another valuati que. The ig policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial are i with those followed in the previous year|
by the Company.

(e) Critical Accounting Judgements and key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s Financial § requires to make jud i and ptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
and the panying disclosures. U inty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or lisbilities affected in
next financial years.

Esti and underlying P are d on an on going basis. Revisions to ing esti are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

(i) Depreciation / Amortisation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment: The Company depreciate & its tangible assets over the useful life of an Asset as prescribed in Schedule 1I of}
Companies Act, 2013, The Company remeasures remaining useful life of an asset at the end of each reporting date.

(ii} Fair value measurement: Fair Value is a price of orderly transaction between market p at the date under current market conditions, The Company determines Fair Value of]

Quoted Investment from ameuble market pnoe Whe.n the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,

their fair value is d using approp hniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
quired in establishing fair values. Jud include iderations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

{m] I"rlmsms. mesncms are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event; and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the|
i it by using its best judgement of future cash outflow.

(iv) Taxes: The Company periodicall its liabilities and conti ies related to income taxes for all years open to scrutiny based on latest information available. For matters where it is probable
that an adjustment will be made, the Company records its best estimates of the tax liability in the current tax provision. The Management believes that they have ad ly provided for the probabl
outcome of these matters,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

(v) Recognition and t of defined benefit abligations
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of al i Key ial ptions include di rate, trends in salary escalation and attrition rate. The)
i rate is d | by refi to market yields at the end of the reporting period on snvurnm:m securities,

(d) Current and Non-Current Classification
Assets & liabilities which are gomg to materialise in one operating cycle i.e. is idered as current and assets & liabilities other than that is considered as non current.

(€) Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets and Depreciation & Amortisation

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less lated depreciation and impai if any. Direct costs in relation to the fixed assets are capitalized until such assets are ready for use.

(i) Tangible Assets: Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-lne method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Manag t. Deg for assets purchased during a
periad is proportionately charged, The useful life of tangible assets is as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013

(i) Intangible Assets: Intangible assets consists of software. The software had been amortized over a period of 7 Years in FY 2019-20, The estimation of amortisation period for software had been
reviewed by Management during FY 2020-21 and the amortisation period has been revised to 10 years accordingly.
Intangible assets also contains trade mark which has been amortized over a period of 10 Years on SLM basis.

(iii) Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS: For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets as
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost of the transition date.




Fireedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvi. Lid.
CIN : UT4999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

() Financials Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are i ‘Wa&mwummapmmmec.untrmuxlp:m-ismnsohheimmm

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attrit ble to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabiliti (other than|
financial assets and financial liabiliti mfairvalueﬂuaughprofnorlnsmdancilla:yeostsre!medmbormwings)arenddedtnordeductedfmmthefairvaiueof&re’ ial assets or
as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or fi ;al liahilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in)

Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
(i) Classification & Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets shall be measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold asset to collect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI: Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at Fair Value (except for those designated at FVTPL on initial recognition)

+ the objective of the business model is achieved by both collects | cash flow and selling financial assets; and
« the asset's contractual cash flow represent SPP1

Debi Instruments at FVTPL: Any debt instrument which is either initially designated at FVTPL or which does not meet the criteria for Amortised cost or FVTOCI is measured at FVTPL,
Effective Interest Method: Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash

receipts through the expected life of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
(for ple, prep 3 ion, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Equity Instruments at FVTOCE: On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument by instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income pertaining to 1 in equity i This election is not permitted if the instrument is held for trading. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to the Statement of]
Profit and Loss on disposal of the investment,

Financial Assets st FVTPL: Investments in equity instruments are classified at FVTPL, unless they were irrevacably elected on initial recognition as FYTOCL Financial Assets at FVTPL are measured

at Fair Value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on gnised in the of Profit and Loss.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is establish 1, it is probable that the ic benefits iated with the dividend will flow to the company, and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliabiy,

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the exp d credit losses iated with its assets carried at amortised cost, FVOCI debt and other financial assets. The i

methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, Note 32 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit nisk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be ised from inrtial
of the receivables.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when :
+ The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

« retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but a | obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of awnership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not ferred suk ially all risks and ds of hip of the 1al asset, the fi | asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of hip of the financial asset, the financial asset is d ised if the Company has not

retained control of the financial asset, Where the group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(iv) Financial Liabilities:
Financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost. The carrying of ial liabilities that are sub i d at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

(v) Dn gnition of ial liabiliti
Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the pany’s oblig: are discl d lied or have expired. A substantial modification in the terms of an exdsting financial liability
is accounted as a discharge of origmnal financial liability and recognition of new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the ial lability d gnised and the iderati

paid and payable is recognised as profit or loss.

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount p d in the of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right and ability to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.




[Fireedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvi. Ltd.
CIN : U74999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(g) Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(h) Impairment of Assets

Property, plant or equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for bility wh there is any indication that their carrying amount may not be , If any such indi
exists, the recoverable amount (Le. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely|
independent to those from other assets.

The Carrying Amount of Assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impai based on 1 I | factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of]
assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss, if any, is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. Reversal of impairment losses recognized|
in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impau losses recognized for the assets no longer exists or have decreased

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

(1) Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposit with original maturity less than 12 months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

(ii) For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposit with initial maturity of less than 3 months, net of outstanding bank
overdraft as they are considered as an integral part of Company's cash management.

[1}] Bnrmw'mg Cost and Finance Charges

ng cost attributable to and ion of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for its intended use. Other
borrowmgmslmchugedmﬂleslmmmtnfpmﬁtmdiossnmepermdmmchﬂwynummdBormwmgmstsmnsmtofmmmmdoﬂm‘mmsmananntyw:mmoomchonmthlhe
barrowing of funds and 15 measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the ive b

PP P &

(k) Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution plan — Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company is statutorily required to contribute a specified portion of the basic salary of
an employee to a provident fund as a part of retirement benefits to its employees. The contributions during the period are charged to statement of profit and loss. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the Provident Fund scheme as an expenditure when an employee renders related service.

Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity, which is in the nature of Defined Benefit Schemes, are payable only to employees and accounted for on accrual basis. The Cost of providing benefits is determined using

the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has not funded its gratuity Liability

Shont Term Employee Benefits - The und i amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are gnized during the year when
the employees render the service. These benefits include incentive and Annual Leave which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the

related service.

(I) Revenue Recognition
(&) "Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits waill flow to the Company, the revenue could be measured reliably and there is no uncertainty as to ultimate collection.

Software Licence and Subscription fee is recognised on accrual basis,

(b) Interest income 15 recognized on time basis.

() Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right 1o receive p is established, it is probable that the ic benefits iated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(d) The Company derives revenues primarily from Subseription Fees from IT Enable Service.

Effective 01 April 2018, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 115) - 'Revenue from contracts with " using the lative catch-up ition method, applied to
contracts that were not completed as on the transition date i.e, 01 April 2018. Accordingly, the comparative amounts of revenue and the sponding assets / liabilities have not been
retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind-AS 115 was nsignificant. (First time adoption impact).

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects
1o receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale. Therefore, a refund Liability, mcluded in other current liabilities, are
gnized for the prod d 1o be d

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the and by the ds one year. Asa
consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

The Company satisfies a perft bligation and gnises revenue over time, if one of the following critena is met:

1. The l ly recerves and the benefits provided by the Company's performance.

2. The Company's perit creates or enh an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

3. The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an ble right to p for per pleted to date.
For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the per bligation is satisfied.

Revenue from services are recognised over a time as and when the per bligation is satisfied.




[Fircedom Intermediary Infrastructure Pvt, Lid.
CIN : UT4999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(m) Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a A is, O ins, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract invoives the use of an
identified asset (ii) the Company has sul ially all of the ic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a night-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is 2 lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these shor-term and low value leases, the Company izes the lease | as an P on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease lisbilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which compnses the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease pay made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease i ives. They are sub | d at cost less lated d ion and impai losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Right of use assets are eval i for bility wi events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (Le. the higher of the fair value less cost 1o sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease p The lease pay are di 1 using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are d with a corresponding ad to the related night of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will IS an 100 0T 8 ination option.

{n) Taxes on Income

Current Tax: Provision for Income Tax is d ined in d with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognized on Iunng differences betwwn the accounting income and the taxable income for the year. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing differences at

the end of the accounting period based on p 1g enacted or suk Iy enacted regulations, Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the mmi them is probability that suﬁclant firture taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. At each reporting date the
Company the ized deferred tax assets and reviews the deferred tax assets recognized.
Current tax and Deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are gnised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also gnised in Other Comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

(o) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingeni Assets
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or ) as a result of past event; and it is probable that an outflow of will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which a rehable estimate can be made.
Provi: (exeluding reti benefits) are not d to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date, taking mnto account
the risks and i ding the bli
Contingent Liabilities are possible but not probable obligations as on the Balance Sheet date, based on the available evidence. Conti Liabilities are not isad in the fin |
Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.

(p) Earming per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity of the P by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the period/year.
Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the period/year. For the purpose of calculating diluted

earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(g) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows statement is prepared using the indirect meThod, wheleby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects oftransactmns of a non-cash nature item of income or 1ated with i
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from op and fi ivities of the C are

(r) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.




[FFREEDOM INTERMEDIARY INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : UT4999MHI01IPTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

3  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following: {Rs. In Lakhs)
Description
Right To Use Assets Motor Vehicle Computer equipment  Furniture & Fixtures  Office equipments Total
Asat Apeil 1,2023 4203 2698 1.52 5944 266 13274
Additions - - 192 - - 192
Disposals - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 42.03 26.98 LR 9.4 2.66 13466
Accumulated depreciation as ot Apnl 1, 2023 1910 146 127 nn 0.09 5080
Depreciation for the yeas 1518 iz 0.61 559 0.55 1524
Diisposals = = = = = =
Accumulated depreciation as al March 31, 2024 34.38 4.67 158 43.37 0.63 B3.04
Met camrying amount as a1 Masch 31, 2024 1.65 2.0 L66 16.07 .01 49.63
Deescription
Right To Use Assets Motor Vehlcle Computer equipment  Furniture & Fixtures Oifice equipments Total
= — — —
As st Apel 1,2023 41,03 - 18.3% 59.44 17.58 148.04
Additons - 2698 044 - 081 28.23
Dispasals % = 277 = 15.83 4353
Ag at March 31,2013 4203 26.98 1.62 5944 2.66 13274
Accunsulated depreciation as st April 1, 2022 sz - 2633 nn 14.56 .00
Depreciation far the year 1528 L6 126 557 0.55 2413
Dnsposals - - 26.32 - 15.02 4133
Accumulated deprecintion as ot March 31, 2023 1910 146 127 3178 .09 59.79
Net cnrrn'ﬂ[ mmount os st March 31, 2023 2193 28,52 .35 21.66 2.56 TL.96
4 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS {Rs. In Lakhs}
e OFA Py Saftware w"';:r“‘ ©  Saftware - DEC 2017 Total
As ot Aprl 1,2023 39817 35651 152 915.05 167445
Additions - - - - - -
Disposals 2 i - : L &
As ot March 31, 2024 398.17 356.51 192 915.05 2.80 1,674.45
Accumulated deprecintion ns at April 1, 2023 158.14 33154 1.26 569.1%8 170 1,062.23
Diepreciation for the year 3853 10.97 018 TI1S 023 113,06
Diisposals - - - - - -
Accumulated deprecintion as at March 31, 2024 196.67 34291 1.44 642.33 193 1,185.29
Met cnrrving nmcant 65 at March 31, 2024 20150 13.60 0.48 172.72 .87 489.16
Description Loge trademark - BOTS Software -
OFA Plus Saftware e Software - DEC 2017 it Total
Asat April 1, 2022 358,17 356.51 152 915,05 180 LET4.45
Additions - - 2 < - =
Disposals . £ . % 2! -
As i March 31, 2023 39817 35651 152 915.05 280 1,674.45
Accumulated depreciation as st Apeil 1, 2022 11271 azm 1.08 496.23 147 930.50
Dieprecintion for the year 3543 1054 0.18 7295 023 122.73
uls - - - . - -
Accumilated depreciution os at March 31, 2023 158.14 33194 1.26 569.18 L70 1,062.22
et carrying nmount as ot March 31, 2023 240.04 M.S_ﬁ 066 34547 1.10 61212

* Software acquired uplo 31 March 2020 had been amortized over o period of 7 Years  and acquired after 315t March 2020 s amortised oves 8 period of 10 years .

(Rs. In Lakhs)
5 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) As at As mt
—March3lL o March 31302l
Deferred Tax Assets
Business Loss

12.9 20776
Leave Encashment 1.15 114
Grutuity Provisions 5.75 5.06
179.89 213.9¢
Deferred Tux Linbilities

Property, Plant und Equipment 5237 6124
5237 6124
127.52 152.72
(R In Lakhs}

6  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS erfhhzl“lﬂld Mmth“:m
Advance Tax Including Tax Deducted ot source 20.85 16.76

2085 16.76
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7

0]

i}

(i)

(i)

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured:
{n) Considered Cood 429 10.03
() Considered doubiful 389 -
Total 813 10,03
Less: Provision for expected crodit loss 3.89 0.49
4.19 9.54
Trade Heeeivables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2024 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Unbilled Less than & montha & months - 1 yesr 1-2 years 2-3 years Mure than 3 years Total
) Unfisputed Trnde e pe > reT) > 3 2 - 429
(i) Undisp Trade = which have i
increase in Credit risk - = & = =
g ke Pkt Sitpuiisd S : 38 - i
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good = = - - .
(v) Digputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
inerense in Credit risk z = = % + =
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables credit impaired = z > Z E z %
Total - 429 389 - - - B18
Less: Allownnce for expected credit loss 389
Net Trade Receivable 4.29
As ot March 31, 2023 (Rs. Tn Lakhs)
Partbculars Unbilled Less than & months & months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed Trade receivabl idered good - 692 i - - - 1003
(1) Undsputed Trade receivahles - which have i
ingresse in Credat risk - 4 Ay H
(i) Undlisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - = 5 % 2
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - = - - =
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in Credit risk - - % a = %
(w1} Diisputed Trade Receivables cradit impaired - - s = 3 e
Total - 692 3 - - - 1003
Less. Allowance for expected credit loss 0.49
Net Trade Receivahle 9.54

MOVEMENT IN THE EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE
Balance ut beginning of the year
Movement in the expected credit boss alk
Balance at end of PeriodY ear

on trade receivables caleul

d at lifetime expected credit loss

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on Hand
Balnnees with Banks
= in Current Accounts

LOAN

Loan to Related Parties
Unsecured, Consider Good
Intercorporate Depasit

Loans or Advances granted 1o promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties

Type of Barrower

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Other Financial Assets - Non current
Security Deposits - Rent
Secunity Deposit -Telemarketing Primary Rate Interface Line

Other Financial Assets - Current

Un:Quoted Investment - Fully Paid up
Tnvestment In Non-Principal Protected Structured Produet at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
- In Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited

Aggregate amount of Un-quoted Investment
Aggregate amount of Quoted Securities nnd markes value thereof

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Stnfl Advances
Prepaid Expenses

049

.49
(R In Lakhs)
As at As at
3 {1} {1}
027 0.08
376.34 36.59
376.61 36.67
As at As at
—Darch 31,2004 March|, 2023
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Ameount of loan or Pereeniage to the total  Amount of loan or Percentage to the total
advance in the nature  loans and advances in  wdvance in the nature  Joans and advances in
of Iy the [ loans of o ‘the nature of loans
& In Lakhs)
AS AT AS AT Asat Axat
MARCH 31, 2024 MARCH 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Qty. in Nos. Qty. in Nos. Amount Amount
287 2.65
0.50 0.50
3.37 3.15
942,61 1,001.29
1000 1,053 9‘16_[ 1,{H)1.29
54161 100129

(R Tn Lukhs)

Asai Asai
i} 4 arch 3
oo 110
9.46 592
9.56 12.02
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(v} Aggregate number of banas shares issued, share issued for consideration other than c

March 31, 2024
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

13 OTHER EQUITY

(i) Securities Premium
Opening balance
Less: Utilised for Banus [ssue
Add: Addinon Duning the Year
Balance as af the year ended

(i} Retained earnings
Opening Balance
Add: Profit{loss) During the Year

Halance as at the year ended

{iii)  Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance
Remeasusement OF Defined Employes Benefil Plan
Halance as at the year ended

TOTAL OTHER EQUITY

Securitles Premium
Balnnce of Security premium consist on ssue of share over its face value. The balance will be wtilised for as per provisions of the Companies Ac12013,

Retuined earnings
Retained compriscs of the of the amounts that can be distributed by the company as dividends to its equity shareholders

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As ot
11 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL arch 31, 2024 Mare
The nuthorised, isswed, subscribed and fully paid up shere capital comprises of equity shares having a par value of INK 10 each as follows:
Authorised
2000000 (PY 2.000.000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-cach 20104 20000
2114 N1 (M}
Tssued, Subscribed And Paid Up e
829,252 (PY 8.29.252) Equity Shares of Ra. 10/-ench Fully Paid Up BL93 293
E.” B1.93
(i} Reconciliation for No. of shares outstanding during the year
Asnt As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity Shares N of Shares (R, ) No. of Shures ik'“ In l.-l(h}
Shares outslanding at the beginning of the year 829252 un 829252 8293
Shares [ssued during the year by capitalising of reserve ‘ 2 - -
Shares Issued during the year for consideration - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of Year 4,29,251 §2.93 $,29,252 #2.93
(i) Terms/Rights attached to the Equity Shures
Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of shares refermed to as Equity Shares having a face value of Ra 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vate per share.
In the event of Liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recesve remaming assets of the Company, after di of all p amounts. The di will be in prog 1o the number of
exquity shares held by the Sharcholders.
iy Details of shares held by sharehalders halding more than 5% of the sggregate shares in the Company:
Nasic of Sharcholders As nt March 31, 2023
No. of sha e of Holdi No._of shares beld % of Holdings
Holling company
Anand Rathi Wealth Limited* 829252 100 B29252 100
*Out of the Total shares | share is beld by & nominee on beball of Holding Company,
{iv)  Shares held by promoters as on reporting date As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Fromoter Nume No. of shares held % of Holdings o C""::_‘:""“"" N, of shares held % of Holdings e c""’"_‘“"" .
Anand Rathi Wealth Limited 829,252 100% - 8,29,252 100%

and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
Bonus shares issued

Tssue of shares for
consideration other

by the Company

244208 244208
244208 2,442.08 |
(953.37) (B86.42)|
72.99 (66.95)
[HAN.35) 3.3
754 1611
(0.92) (%.57)|
6.62 154
1,568.32 1,496.25
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[FFREEDOM INTERMEDIARY INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

14 BORROWINGS

i) Bormowings - Non current
Term Loan- Vehicle Loan

(1)  Borrowings - Current
Term Loan- Vehicle Loan

{refer above ot for terms of loan}

15 LEASE LIABILITIES

(i Won Curment
Lease Liahility

(i} Current

Leuse Liability

16 PROVISIONS

Crrutuity Provigione

(i) Corment
{0} Emplayes Henefit Lishilitiea
Gratuity Provisions
Leave Encashment

17 TRADE PAYABLES

Terms of repayment - Repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments, lnst instalment flling due an October 07, 2027
The rate of interest ranges between TV to 8% pa.
The Company has not defaulted in repayment of principal & inlerest due over the reporting period

0] Emplovee Benefit Linbilities - Non current

(A) Total ing dues of

A al March 31, 2024

(1) MSME

(i) Ohers

(ini) Disputed dues = MSME
{iv) Disputed dues - Others

As nt March 31, 2023

(i} MBME

(i) Others

(i} Diisputed dues - MSME
(v} Disputed dues - Cthers

1§ OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current
Advance from customers
Employec Benefils Payable
Interest accrued but not due
Provizion for Expenses

19 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory Dues
Advance from Customer

() Total sutstanding dues of creditors ather than micre enterprises and small enterprises

*The above disclosure is base on the respanses received by the company o ils inguiries with suppliers with regard o applicability under the Micro, Small and Medum Enterprise development Act, 2016

(R In Lakhs)

As at Asat
—Mapch3L,2024 ____March3L 208
12.73 17.00

1273 17.00

421 395

427 395

= 15.51

- 15.51

826 826

826 8.26

(Rs. In Lakhs}

As ut Asat

A M 20 March JLJ0H

20 1943

22.09 19.43

{Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at
—Dlarch SL 2 Marsh 31,2023
0.76 069
4.56 4.54
530 523

(Rs. In Lakhs}

Ouistanding for following periods from dee date of payment

Less than 1 year 12 years 13 yeans More than 3 Total
Ly

for following periods from due date of payment

Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
—ean

(B, In Lakhs)

As at Asat
—Mupch 320z Mach 3100
ol -

113 i

0.09 ol

7.52 0.57

18,85 1194

As 2t
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
17.90 13.86
282.93 24197

LI EIE
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20 INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Revenue from sale of services
IT Enabled Services

21 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss)

Gain / (Loss) on Sale of Investments
Fair value Gain / (Loss) on investment
Miscellaneous and Other Income

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salary Incentive & Allowances

Gratuity Expenses

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

Staff Welfare expenses

A ts r d in the Bal Sheet in respect of gratuity

(funded by the Company):
Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation at the end of
the period/year
Less: Fair value of plan assets

Net Liability/( Asset)

Amounts recognized in Salary, Wages and Employee Benefits in the
Profit and Loss Account in respect of gratuity (funded by the
Company):

Current Service cost

Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations

Expected return on plan assets

Past Service Cost — Vested Benefit recognised during the period/year

Net Gratuity Cost

Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Amount r 1in OClin b

Remeasurement due to:
Effect of Change in financial assumptions
Effect of Change in demographic assumptions
Effect of experience adjustments

ing of the period/year

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses
Less : Return on plan assets (excluding interest)
Total r recognized in OCI

Amount recognized in OCI, End of period/year

Actual Return on Plan Assets :
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets

Actual Return on Plan Assets

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
562.54 486,15
562.54 486.15
(Rs. In Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
110.13 90.28
- 0.04
0.79 .
0.93 #
0.51 s
112.36 90.32
(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
318.07 258.63
4.00 3.06
19.31 16.27
11.18 9.99
352.56 287.95
{Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22.86 20.12
22.86 20,12
257 2.50
1.42 0.56
4.00 3.06
(4.86) (16.32)
0.58 0.11
0.64 11.35
1.22 11.45
122 11.45
(3.64) (4.86)




FFREEDOM INTERMEDIARY INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : UT4999MH2013PTC245870
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value For the year ended For the year ended
of the plan assets: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Change in present value of obligation:

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 2012 7.84
Interest Cost 1.42 0.56
Current Service Cost 257 2.50

Past Service Cost i #
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions % J
Benefits Paid (2.49) (2.23)
Total Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation 122 11.45

Closing Defined Benefit Obligati 2286 20.12

Change in fair value plan assets:

Opening Fair Value of the plan assets = =
Expected return on plan assets -
Actual Enterprise's Contribution -
Actual Benefits Paid
Actuarial Gain/(loss)

Closing Fair value of the plan assets - =

Investment details of plan assets
Government of India Securitics % #
Corporate Bonds # =
Special Deposit Scheme 3 -
Insurer Managed Fund # o
Others =
Total * *

Experience Adjustment
Defined Benefit Obligation 22.86 20.12
Plan Assets - -
(Surplus)/deficit 22.86 20.12
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 1.22 11.45
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Plan Assets - Due to Experience - -

Weighted average duration of Define benefit obligation 13.49 1333

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Within next 12 months 0.76 0.69
Between 1 and 5 Years 3 332 3.08
Between 6 and 10 Years 23.64 19.40

Current/Non Current Bifurcation

Current Liability-Provisions for Employee benefits 0.76 0.69
Non- Current Liability-Provisions for employee benefits 22.09 19.43
The estimates of rate of escalation in salary idered in actuarial valuation, take into inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including)

supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

There are no amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for:
i) Company’s own financial instrument
ii) Property occupied by or other assets used by the Company
Discount Rate:
Discount Rate for this valuation is based on Yield to Maturity (YTM) available on Government bonds having similar term to decrement-adjusted estimated term)
of liabilities.

For valuation as at March 31, 2024 the estimated term of liabilities is 13.49 years, corresponding to which YTM on government bonds is 6.95%, after rounding{
to nearest 0.05%.

Salary Escalation Rate:

Salary escalation ption is based on esti of over all long-term salary growth rates after taking in to consideration expected earnings inflation as well as
performance and seniority related increases.

Withdrawal Rate:
Assumptions regarding withdrawal rates is based on the estimates of expected long term employee turnover within the organization.
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Mortality Rate
It is based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult. as issued by Institute of Actuaries of India for the actuarial valuation.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount rate

6.95% 7.20%

Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% 5.00%

Atien ks For Service d yrs & belaw  For Service d yrs & below

20% p.a. & service 5yrs  20% p.a. & service 5 yrs
and above 2% p.a and above 2% p.a

Retirement Age 60 years 60 years
Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respecti ption: occu.mng at the end of Period/Year and. may

not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other ms When calculating the|
sensitivity to the assumption, the same method used to calculate the liability recognized in the Balance Sheet has bae'n applied. The methods and types of]
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous year,

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 22.86 20.12
Discount Rate
Increase by 50 bps 21.72 19.09
Impact of increase by 50 bps in Percentage -4.98% -5.12%)|
Decrease by 50 bps 24.09 21.24
Impact of decrease by 50 bps in Percentage 5.41% 5.56%
Salary Growth Rate
Increase by 50 bps 2362 20.79
Impact of increase by 50 bps in Percentage 3.35% 3.30%|
Decrease by 50 bps 2212 19.49
Impact of decrease by 50 bps in Percentage -3.20% -3.16%

Plan Information And Characteristics

Eligibility All Employees

Qualifying Salary Monthly Basic Salary

- ! Completed years of continuous service with part thereof in

Qualifying Service excess of six months

Form of Payment Lumpsum

Retirement Benefit 15/26*Last Drawn salary®*Service

Withdrawal Limit Same as Retirement Benefit

Death Benefit Same as Retirement Benefit

Vesting Period 5 years on Retirement & withdrawal

Maximum Ceiling 20 Lacs

Defined Contribution Plans

Amount recognized as an expense under the head Contribution to Provident and other Funds in note 22 Employee Benefit Expenses of Statement of Profit and
Loss towards Group's Contribution to Provident Fund is Rs 15.55 Lakhs (FY 2022-23 Rs 12.83 Lakhs).

(Rs. In Lakhs)
" For the year ended For the year ended
FENANCE CONIR March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on lease (IND AS 116) 1.29 2.54
Interest on Car Loan 1.49 0.83
Loan Processing Fees - 0.20

.78 3.57
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24 OTHER EXPENSES

IT Enabled Fees - Processing Charges
Rent

Communication expenses

Electricity expenses

Networking expenses

Legal & professional charges
Membership & subscriptions charges
Business promotion and advertisement expense
Business Development Cost

Printing & stationery charges

Repairs & maintenance - others
Training and Recruitment expenses
Conveyance expenses

Travelling expenses

Auditors remuneration

- Audit fees

Expected Credit Loss

Office Expenses

Miscellaneous & other

15 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax

Current tax on profit for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Total Current tax expenses

Deferred Tax

Decrease / (Increase) in deferred tax assets
(Decrease) [ Increase in deferred tax liabilities
Total deferred tax expenses / benefit

Total Income Tax Expenses

Particulars

Applicable Tax Rate
Profit before tax

Tax Expenses as per above rate
Expenses Disallowed

Others

Total Tax Expenses Recognised

Effective Tax Rate

mncome tax and deferred tax have been calculated.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7.10 5.50
0.12 -
447 428
7.09 6.49
20.89 26.24
0.99 1.11
0.01 0.11
0.20 5.37
723 6.45
0.54 0.78
3.60 6.39
- 0.32
0.89 1.06
1.30 228
335 325
340 0.49
4.14 378
7.13 6.67
T72.45 80.56
(Rs. In Lakhs) |
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.30 #
0.30 -
34.07 123.50
(8.86) (1.88)
25.21 121.62
25.51 121.62
(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2517 2517
98,80 57.55
24.87 14.49
0.64 0.56
- 106.57
15,51 121.62
25.82% 211.33%

The Government of India has inserted section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961 which provides domestic companies an option to pay corporate tax at
reduced rate of 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess subject to certain conditions. The Company has adopted the option of reduced rate and accordingly
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26

27

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 108:- OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the mternal isation and structure, The operating]
segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the 1
M in deciding how to all and in ing perft

The Company 1s engaged in providing IT Enabled Services, As such there 1s no other reportable segment.

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of]
goods or services delivered or provided, the infi ion is future analysed based on the different classes of customers. The directors of the Company have chosen to organise the|
group around difference in the products and services. No operating segments have been aggregated in armving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Leases

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating)
segments are the segments for which separate fi ial infi tion 15 ilable and for which operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the executivel
Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The Company is engaged in providing IT Enabled Services. As such there is no other reportable segment.

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocahion and t of perfi fi on the types of]
goods or services delivered or provided, the information 1s future analysed based on the different classes of The di of the Company have chosen to organise the|
group around difference in the products and services. No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

The Company has accounted for short term lease as per paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116. The Expense relating to short term lease debited in profit & loss account during the period is|
Rs. 0.12 Lakh (FY 2022-23 Rs, 0.00 Lakh),

The Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the nght of use asset at an amount equal tol
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date of mitial
application,

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 8.40%,

Following s the inf o pevtiiiding g Raue
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
(a) Depreciation Charge for Right-of-Use Asset 15.28 15.28
(b) Interest Expense on Lease Liability 1.29 2.54

(c) Expense relating to short term leases accounted in profit

& loss

(d) Total Cash QOutflow for Leases for the year (includes
expense relating to short term lease and rent expense
recognised - -
(2) Additions to Right-of-Use Asset - -
(f) Deletions from Right-of-Use Asset (Gross Block) - -
(g) Deletions from Right-of-Use Asset (Provision for

Depreciation) - -
(h) Carrying Amount of Right-of-Use Asset 7.65 22.93

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities (on Undiscounted basis):

As at As at
Dre. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Not later than | year .40 16.80
Later than | year and not later than 5 years - 8.40
Later than 5 years - -
Total .40 25.20
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(a)
()

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(b)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(¥)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE - Ind AS

List of Related Parties
Holding Company
Anand Rathi Wealth Limited

Fellow Subsidiary
A R Digital Wealth Private Limited
Freedom Wealth Solutions Private Limited

Directors/ Key Managerial Persons
Bishnupada Sahu -Whole Time Director & CEQ
Rajesh Kumar Bhutara

Abhishek Rathi

Other Related Parties :

Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited
Anand Rathi Financial Services Limited
Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited

Agqua Proof Wall Plast Private Limited

Anand Rathi IT Private Limited

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:
Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors.

Nature of Transaction/Relationship

Loan Given

Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited
Aqua Proof Wall Plast Private Limited

Loan Given Repaid
Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited
Aqua Proof Wall Plast Private Limited

Payment of Reimbursement of Expenses
Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited

Interest Income
Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited
Aqua Proof Wall Plast Private Limited

Support Service Taken
Anand Rathi Financial Services Limited
Anand Rathi IT Private Limited

Purchase of Non-Principal Protected Structured Product
Anand Rathi Wealth Limited
A R Digital Wealth Private Limited

Sale of Non-Principal Protected Structured Product
Anand Rathi Wealth Limited

Rent Expenses
Anand Rathi IT Private Limited

Remuneration paid to KMP
Short Tenn Employee Benefits - Bishnupada Sahu

Other Related Parties
Other Related Parties

Other Related Parties
Other Related Parties

Other Related Parties

Other Related Parties
Other Related Parties

Other Related Parties
Other Related Parties

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary

Holding Company

Other Related Parties

Key Managerial Person

(Rs. In Lakhs)

2023-24

2022-23

170.00
3,480.00

170.00
3,480.00

2.39
107.12

0.57

941.68

1,002.08

0.12

79.74

2,978.00
1,000.00

2,978.00
1,000.00

4.69

70.15
16.84

0.59
0.07

1,000.35

41.76
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Earning Per Share

As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Net Profit after tax 7299 (66.95)
Number of equity shares £8,29252 8,29,252
Face Value Per Share (in Rs) 10 10
Weighted Average number of equity shares 220,252 820252
Diluted Weighted Average number of equity shares 829,252 8,29,252
Earnings Per Share (in Rs)

- Basic 8.80 (8.07)
= Diluted 8.80 (8.07)

Capital Management

For the purpose of Company's capital mar t, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders of company.
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it continues as a going concemn while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio. Capital gearing ratio of company is as follows :

Rl 31-Mar24 | 31-Mar23
Equity 82.93 82.93
Other Equity 1,568.32 1,496.25
Total Equity (A) 1,651.25 1,579.18
|Borrowings 17.00 2095
Net Debt (B) 17.00 20,95
Net Debt to Equity Ila_tio (B/A) 0.01 0,01

Financial Instrument - Fair Values

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the camrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Particulars Fair value (Rs. in Lakhs)|
March 31, 2024 Note No. Carrying Quoted prices in Significant Significant Total
Amount active markets  observable inputs  unobservable
(Level 1) (Level 2) inputs
(Level 3)

Financial assets
Amortised Cost
(i) Trade receivables 7 429 - - - 429
(11) Cash and cash equivalents 8 376.61 - - - 376.61
(i11) Loan 9 - - - - -
(iv) Other Financial Assets 10 945 98 - - - 945 98

1,326.88 - - - 1,326.88

Financial liabilities
Amaortised Cost

(i) Borrowings 14 17.00 - - - 17.00
(11) Lease Liabilities 15 826 - - - 8.26
(11) Trade Payables 17 - - - 2 -

(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 18 18 85 - - - 18.85

44.11 3 - - 44.11
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32 Financial instruments — Risk management

Particulars Fair value (Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2023 Note No. Carrying Quoted prices in Significant Significant Total
Amount active markets  observable inputs  unobservable
(Level 1) (Level 2) inputs
(Level 3)
Financial assets
Amortised Cost
(1) Trade recervables ! 9.54 - - - 9.54
(11} Cash and cash equivalents 8 36.67 - - - 36.67
(i1i) Loan 9 - - - - -
(1v) Other Financial Assets 10 1,004 44 - - - 1,004.44
1,050.65 - - = 1,050.65
Financial liabilities
Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings 14 20.94 - - 2 20,94
(i1) Lease Liabilities 15 23.76 - - - 23.76
(i11) Trade Payables 17 = - - = =
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 18 12.94 - - - 12,94
57.64 - - - 57.64

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument can be exchanged in the current transaction between willing parties, other]
than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Financial instruments carried at amortised cost such as cash deposits, trade and other receivables, trade payables, borrowings and other current fi ial ir
at their fair values largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market rigk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary risk management focus is to
minimize potential adverse effects on revenue, The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Company, to set approprate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and t policies and p are|
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Company's risk it and 2 policies and p

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its fi ial obligations as they b due. The Comg its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without ineurring unacceptable losses or risk to
the Company’s reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company's fi ial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all financial liabilities

Particulars Contractual cash flows (INR) (Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2024 Carrying amount Total On Demand Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years
Trade Payables - - = e = e
Borrowings 17.00 17.00 - 1.04 323 12.73
Other Finaneial Liabilities 18.85 18.85 - 18.85 - -
Lease Liabilites 8.26 826 - 376 4.50 -

Particulars Contractual cash flows (INR lacs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2023 Cartrying amount Total On Demand Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years
Trade Pavables - - - - - -
Borrowings 20.95 2095 - 1.04 291 17.00
Other Financial Liabilities 12.54 12.54 - 12.94 - -
Lease Liabilites 23.77 23,77 - 3.76 10.81 92!
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to & financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Company's receivables from customers, security deposits, capital advances and investment securities,

Customer credit risk is managed by company as per its policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk. Credit quality of a customer credit risk is assessed based|
on an extensive credit rating scoreboard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance wath this assessment. Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored
and all possible steps taken to timely realise them

Since the company receives payment in advance there is no expected credit loss as per past trend and hence no ageing in terms of percentage loss shall be available,
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As on reporting date credit risk exposure are as on following: (Rs. in Lakhs)

31/Mar/24 31/Mar/23
Loans K = -
Trade Receivables 429 9.54
Bank Balances in Current Account 376.34 36.69]
Fixed Deposit ; !
Investment In Non-Principal Protected Structured Product 942.61 1,001.29
Interest Accrued 5 T
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate b
risk: a.) Interest Rate Risk, b.) Currency Risk and c.) Other Price Risk such as equity price risk etc,

of ¢

in market prices. Market Risk comprises three types of]

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to|
changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s outstanding floating rate debt included in borrowings.

Sensitivity Analysis: (Rs. in Lakhs)|

5 As at As at

1}

Famciion March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Floating Rate Liability 17.00 20.95
A hypothetical 1% shift in underlying benchmark rates will have the below impact:
Impact on Profit and Loss
Increase of 1% (0.09) (0.09)
Decrease of 1% 0.09 0.09
Equity Price Risk

The group’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the group's senior management on a
regular basis,

At the reporting date, there is no exposure to equity securities of other entities.

Currency Risk
The Company's primary business activities are within India and does not have significant exposure in foreign currency.

Financial Ratios
Particulars 31/Mar/24 31/Mar/23 Ratio variation Reason if Change of More Than 25%

1. Current Ratio (Current Assets / Current Liablities) 3.95 3T 6.46% | NA

2. Debt Equity Ratio (Total Debt / Total Equity) 0.01 0.01 295%| NA

3.Debt Service Coverage Ratio (EBIT / Total Debt Service) 150.39 100.92 49.02%| Increase in Turnover in FY 24 and written off of DTA in
FY23 which is non recurring item.

4. Return on Equity Ratio (Profit After Tax/Average Equity) 4.52% -4.14% 209.15%| Increase in Turnover in FY 24 and written off of DTA in
FY23 which is non recurring item.

5. Inventory Tumnover Ratio (COGS/ Average Inventory) - - 0.00%| NA

6. Trade receivable tumover ratio (Net Sales / Average 81.32 43.86 85.42%| Tumover increased compared to last year along with

Trade Recievables) reduction in Trade receivable.

7. Trade payable turnover ratio (Net Sales / Average Trade - = 0.00% | NA

|Pavables)

8. Net capital turnover ratio (Net Sales / Net Working 0.34:1 0.34:1 0.00% | NA

9. Net profit ratio (PAT/ Revenue from operations) 12.98% -13.77% 194.23% | Turnover increased resulting into i in profitability

10. Return on Capital Employed (EBIT / Capital Employed) 8.71% 6,30% 38.24%| Turnover increased resulting into i in profitability

11. Return on Investment (Profit on Investment / Average 4.94% 18.70% 73.56% | Appreciation in Nifty during this year is lower then last Year.

Investment)

Explanations to items included in computing the above ratios

1. Current Ratio: Current Asset over Current Liabilities

2. Debt Equity Ratio = Total debt divided by total equity where total debt refers to sum of current and non-current borrowings
3.Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by the Total interest, principal and lease repayment during the period

4. Return on Equity Ratio: Profit After Tax over Equity (includ
5. Inventory tumover ratio: Cost of goods sold or sales over average inventory

average of of

ing and cl

6.Trade receivables turnover ratio = Revenue from Operations divided by average trade receivables
7.Trade payables tumover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables
8 Net capital turnover ratio = Revenue from Operations divided by Net working capital whereas net working capital = current assets - current liabilities
9.Net Profit ratio = Profit after tax divided by Revenue from Operations

10.Return on Capital Employed= EBIT/ Capital Employed

11.Retun on Investment= Net profit after tax/ Average Equity

Note:

a Considering the nature of business activites, only ratios applicable to the company are provided.

The Non-GAAP measures p

equity capital and other equity).
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34 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises]
should ion in their comrespond with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, |
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further m view of the Management, There s no latest
payable in accordance with the provision of the act. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year, - -
The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year; - A

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year, and - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small 5 =
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 !

35 Detail of foreign currency payment made from Credit card is Rs,0.29 lakh (FY 2022-23 Rs.0.27 lakh).

36 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Company is not liable to spend any as per the provisions of See 135 of the companies Act,2013.

37 In the opinion of the Management, the value of all Current Assets, Loans and Advances and other receivables is not less than their realisable value in the ordinary course of]
business.

38 The Company does not have any pending litigahon which would impact its financial position.
39 The Company does not have any capital commitments as on the balance sheet date.

40 The Company, as a process, reviews and ensures to make adequate provisions for material foreseeable loss, if any, on all long-term contracts, As on the reporting date there is no
material foreseeable loss on any long-term contract.
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41 Other Notes

Addits 1 regul y informati

a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or slmpremlum ar any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(entities), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the und ded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whnlsncm by or on behalf of thecompany (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, other than those disclosed in the notes to accounts

b) No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(entitics), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the Understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise , that the company shall , whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, other than those disclosed in the notes to
accounts

¢) The company does not have any transactions during the year with the struck off companies or balance at the end of year with such companies.

d) The company does not have any Benami property and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property, under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder

¢) The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous financial year,

f) The company has not undertaken any transaction which 1s not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

g) The company has not been declared a “Wilful Defaulter’ by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance
with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

42 The figures of the previous years have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our attached report of even date For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101046W/W100063

AT

Vinod K. Shah

Partner Rajesh Kumar Bhutara
Membership no: 032348 Whole Time Director & CEOQ Director
Mumbai DIN:06788139 DIN:01315143

Date: April, 09, 2024 Mumbai Mumbai




